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RICHARD I. FINE

18102 Jaguar Ct. OR‘G'NAL
Tarzana, CA 91335

Telephone: 310-622-6900

Facsimile: 818-996-8512

E-mail: richardfine@richardfinelaw.com
In Pro Per

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT; or
FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALI :
WESTERN DIVISION

CASE NOZ ™!
CV 1040048 JSTEW)
VER[IFEEDFIRST
AMENDED GOMPLAINT

FOR: (1) DECLARATORY
AND INJUNCTIVE
RELIEF, AND (2) TO SET
ASIDE VOID ORDER OF

DISBARMENT, AND

Richard I. Fine, an individual,
Plaintiff,

Ud iz

OFBY S~ AVK 1102

V.

)
)
)
)
)
State Bar of California, a Public Corporation, )
Board of Governors of the State Bar of )
California, Richard A. Honn, Patrice E. )
McElroy, Joann M. Remke, Judith A. Epstein, )
Madge S. Watai (Ret.), Ronald W. Stovitz, ) PRECEDING ORDER OF
Lucy Armendariz and Donald F. Miles, ) INVOLUNTARY
Judges of the State Bar Court, Scott J. Drexel, ) INACTIVE ENROLLMENT
Chiof Trial Counsel of the State Bar of ) WHICH WERE EACH
California, and Ronald M. George, Chief = ) BASED UPON EXTRINSIC
Justice of the California Supreme Court ) FRAUD UPON THE
(Ret.), Chief Justice Tani Cantil-Sakauye, ) COURT
Associate Justice Carlos R. Moreno, ) 28 US.C. §§ 1331, 1367,
Associate Justice Joyce L. Kennard, Associate ) 1501.02. 42 U.S.C. 1983
Justice Ming W. Chin, Associate Justice ) p. 4. Ja,nuar 5 2010
Marvin R. Baxter, and Associate Justice Carol ) ' Y
A. Corrigan, )
Defendants. )
)
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L SUMMARY OF FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT AND
2 BACKGROUND TO STATE BAR ACTION AGAINST PLAINT IFF
3 . This First Amended Complaint in the First Cause of Action seeks to

4 || prohibit the State Bar of California (State Bar) and the State Bar defendants
5 || from violating the First and Fourteenth Amendments to the U.S. Constitution

through a mechanism of using unconstitutional statutes in the state’s “statutory

6

. procedure to regulate attorney conduct” to quash protected First Amendment

g activity and access to the courts by “involuntarily ordering inactive” and

o “recommending the disbarment of” attorneys who have not been sanctioned by

constitutionally appointed or elected judges in “courts of record”. The existence

10 of these statutes and this conduct has had the effect of “chilling of what may be
! constitutionally protected speech”, causing “others not before the court to refrain
12 from constitutionally protected speech or expression” and reducing
13 representation and the ability to obtain representation in the federal and state
14

courts. The First Cause of Action for Declaratory and Injunctive Reliefis are

15 pleading of USDC Case No. CV 08-2906 which was dismissed without prejudice
16 | on abstention grounds on March 26, 2009.

17 2. This First Amended Complaint in the Second Cause of Action seeks
18 || to prohibit all defendants from violating the First and Fourteenth Amendments to
19 || the U.S. Constitution through a mechanism of using unconstitutional statutes in
20 || the state’s “statutory procedure to regulate government conduct” to quash

21 || protected First Amendment activity and access to the courts and Fourteenth

27 | Amendment due process rights by granting retroactive state immunity from

»3 || criminal prosecution, civil liability and disciplinary action to a government

24 | entity, official or employee who has violated the federal and state constitutions
and laws, should be removed from office, should be imprisoned, and should be

25

% required to return all illegally received monies plus 20% interest. The existence

"7 of these statutes and this conduct has had the effect of “chilling of what may be

- constitutionally protected speech”, causing “others not before the court to refrain
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from constitutionally protected speech or expression”, reducing representation
and the ability to obtain representation in the federal and state courts and
denying due process.

3. This First Amended Verified Complaint in the Third Cause of
Action seeks an order setting aside the void orders obtained through extrinsic
fraud upon the court by the defendants, and each of them, having engaged in a
course of conduct and concert of action of obstruction of justice. Such void
orders include (a) the State Bar Hearing Department’s October 12, 2007 Order of
Involuntary Inactive Enrollment, effective October 17, 2007, entered by State
Bar Court Judge Richard A. Honn, which was not affirmed in the denial of a
Petition for Review by the California Supreme Court, and (b) the State Bar
Review Department’s September 29, 2008 Recommendation of Disbarment
offective November 29, 2008, which became an order of the California Supreme
Court effective March 25, 2009 pursuant to B&P Code § 6084, after a Petition
for Review and Rehearing was denied.

A.  The First Amended Verified Complaint Satisfies the Magistrate
Judge’s March 31, 20110rder as to the 11" Amendment and Judicial
and Quasi Judicial Immunity Issues.

4. The First Amended Complaint has not named new parties. It has

substituted individual defendants for the California Supreme Court and added
the names of the individual State Bar Court judges all of whom are now sued for
injunctive relief. Individuals, even state judicial officers may be sued for
injunctive relief even if they are acting in their judicial capacity. (See Report and
Recommendation of United States Magistrate Judge Woehrle, in related case
Fine v. State Bar of California, et al. CV-08-2806, March 26, 2009, pages 16-17
holding that Eleventh Amendment Immunity is not available to Defendant State
Bar of California, Board of Governors of State Bar of California, Judges of State
Bar Court of California and Chief Trial Counsel of State Bar of California when

sued as a state official in an official capacity for injunctive or prospective relief

22632WPD/T7a/ -3- Verified First Amended Complaint
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citing Will v. Michigan Dep’t. State Police, 491 U.S. 58, 71, n.10 (1989)-citing
Kentucky v. Graham, 473 U.S. 159, 167, n.14, Edelman v. Jordan, 415 U.S. 651
(1974) and Ex Parte Young, 209 U.S. 123, 159-160 (1908), further holding “nor
is the official immune when sued for damages in an individual capacity” citing
Arizonians for English v. Arizona, 520 U.S. 43 (1997) and Hafer v. Melo, 502
U.S. 21, 30 (1991). The Report and Recommendation was accepted by the court
and is res judicata as to the parties herein. The Magistrate Judge’s March 31,
2011 order in this case cites to Hafer v. Melo, 502 U.S. 21 (1991), Will v.
Michigan Dep’t. State Police, 491 U.S. 58 (1989), Antoine v. Byers &
Anderson, Inc., 508 U.S. 429 (1993) - A court reporter is not absolutely immune
from damages liability for failing to produce a transcript of a federal criminal
trial,, 435, n.10 (explaining judicial immunity for a judicial officer functioning as

a judge as distinguished in another capacity) and Curry v. Castro [Inre Castillo],
297 F.3d 940, 952 (9" Cir. 2002)- Bankruptcy Trustee scheduling hearings

performs judicial act for which quasi immunity exists. Neither Antoine nor Curry
distinguish or overturn the holdings of Will, Ex Parte Young, and Hafer set forth
above. The First Amended Complaint has satisfied the “1 1™ Amendment
Immunity issues, and the judicial and quasi judicial immunity issues”.
B. The First Amended Verified Complaint Satisfies the Magistrate
Judge’s March 31, 2011 Order as to the Rooker-Feldman Doctrine.
5. The Magistrate Judge’s March 31, 2011 Order specifically
addressed the issue of the Rooker-Feldman Doctrine, but ignored the holding of
Kougasian v. TSML. Inc., 359 F.3d 1136 (9" Cir. 2004) set forth in the complaint

which is an exception to the Rooker-Feldman Doctrine when extrinsic fraud on
the court exists as in the present case. Jurisdiction specifically exists under 42
U.S.C. § 1983 for violation of the rights protected under the First, Fourth and
Fourteenth Amendments for the extrinsic fraud by an officer of the Court and a

judicial officer upon the Court resulting in an adverse state court decision. (See
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Kougasian v. TSML, Inc., 359 F.3d 1136 (9" Cir. 2004).) Kougasian v. TSML,

Inc is an exception to the Rooker -Feldman Doctrine in the situation in which
extrinsic fraud exists, as has occurred in this case by the individual defendant’s
acts of obstruction of justice. Further, Rooker - Feldman has been held not to
apply in a case such as the present in which plaintiff is not seeking
“readmission” to the bar. (See Khanna v. State Bar of Cal., 505 F.Supp.2d 633
(N.D. Cal., 2007)) The court stated at page 642:

Moreover, Mr. Khanna does not assert as a legal wrong an erroneous
decision of the California Supreme Court, but rather the illegal acts of
other parties — the named defendants herein. See MHC, 420 F.3d at 1030
(Rooker-Feldman is applicable where the state court is sued for its actions,
not those of an adverse party). This case is thus far more analogous to
Kougasian where there were allegations of extrinsic fraud on the court
rather than Feldman in which the final judgment of the District of
Columbia court was directly challenged.

C. The Individual Supreme Court Justices Engaged in Obstruction of
Justice in the State Bar Case by Having Participated in the Case
When They Had Taken Money From Parties that Had an Interest in
the Case and by Seeking Personal Protection for Such Illegal Action
through the Unconstitutional Retroactive Inmunity from State
Criminal Prosecution, Civil Liability and Disciplinary Action of
California Senate Bill SBX 2 11 Enacted after the Sturgeon Case Held
County Payments to Judges Violated Article VI, Section 19 of the
California Constitution
6. The obstruction of justice in the State Bar Case against Plaintiff

Fine (Fine) is clear and simple. None of the California Supreme Court Justices

who denied review of Fine’s State Bar case were qualified to act as judicial

officers. Each one of them had (a) themselves, either taken illegal payments
from LA County a “party” to the proceedings as it was illegal LA County
payments to judges and judicial officers which were the basis of literally every

charge in the Notice of Disciplinary Charges, (b) taken illegal payments from
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another county while sitting as a judge in such county, ©) written Senate Bill
SBX 2 11 to give retroactive immunity from criminal prosecution, civil liability
and disciplinary action to judges who took illegal payments from counties, or (d)
illegally covered up the illegal actions of their colleagues and illegally remained
on Fine’s case.

1. County Payments to Judges Are Illegal

7. In 2008, Division 1 of the Fourth Appellate District of the
California Court of Appeal in the case of Sturgeon v. County of Los Angeles,
(2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 630, (Sturgeon case) held that the LA County payments
to the State judges sitting in LA County violated Article VI, Section 19 of the
California Constitution. Review was denied on December 23, 2008. On
December 28, 2010, Division 1 of the Fourth Appellate District of the California
Court of Appeal, 2010 WL 5300825, held that Senate Bill SBX 2 11 allowing
temporary payments commencing May 21, 2009 on the same terms and
conditions as existed on July 1, 2008 were a temporary measure but did not
provide a permanent solution to the violation of Article VI, Section 19. Review
was denied. Such temporary payments in LA County expired on June 30, 2009,
as they were only instituted on an annual basis in LA County. Further, Senate
Bill SBX 2 11 did not provide any immunity from prosecution, civil liability or
disciplinary action to the judges who received such “temporary payments” or any
payments after the expiration of the “temporary payments”.

8. Under the language of Senate Bill SBX 2 11, the LA County
“temporary payments” expired on 6/30/09 and all LA County payments since
that time were and are illegal and violate Article VI., Section 19 of the California
Constitution.

9. The issue of the constitutionality of the retroactive immunity of

Senate Bill SBX 2 11 was never presented to California court. Such paragraph 5
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states as follows:

SEC. 5. Notwithstanding any other law, no governmental entity, or
officer or employee of a governmental entity, shall incur any liability or
be subject to prosecution or disciplinary action because of benefits
provided to a judge under the official action of a governmental entity
prior to the effective date of this act on the ground that those benefits
were not authorized under law. (Emphasis added.)

2. Judges Who Had Taken County Payments Knew that They
Were Disqualified From Deciding County Cases from the late
1980's.

10. The LA Superior Court judges knew that they had broken the law by
receiving LA County payments as far back as 1988. A November 10, 1988 letter
from Sr. Asst. LA County Counsel Roger M. Whitby to Frank S. Zolin, County
Clerk/Executive Officer of the LA Superior Court, stated that “compensation
[referring to the wording in Article VI, Section 19] is now commonly used to
mean salary and fringe benefits” (page 2) citing two California Attorney General
Opinions and that only the State Legislature can prescribe such for judges, Id.,
citing County of Madera v. Superior Court, 39 Cal. App.3d 665 (1974). Although
arguing that benefits could be given by counties without any supporting statutory
law, the letter conceded at page 6, that “judges are technically state constitutional
officers”.

11. The letter concluded at page 10 that the reason given for the LA
County payments to the judges was: “the Board of Supervisors had evidently
found that to attract and retain qualified judges to serve in this [LA] county, it
was necessary and appropriate to provide them benefits such as the flexible
benefit plan contribution and the 401(k) match, which are available to many
employees and court officers and employees other than judges”.

12.  The reason was a “pretext” as the Board of Supervisors did not
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“attract” or “select” State judges. They were either initially appointed by the
Governor and subsequently elected in a general election, or initially elected in a
general election. Also, the Board of Supervisors did not “retain” State judges in
office. They were re elected in a general election.

13.  The LA County payments to a sitting State judge could neither
“attract” the judge to the office as the judge was already in the office, nor
“retain” the judge in the office as the judge had to be re elected in a general
election to retain the office. The payments had one purpose, to influence the
decisions of the judge in favor of LA County, i.e. “Bribery”.

14. The November 10, 1988 letter was concealed by LA County and the
LA Superior Court until the appeal of the Sturgeon case in 2008. It was then
produced by LA County in response to questions by the appellate panel.

15.  Inthe Sturgeon case, all of the judges in the LA Superior Court and
all of the justices in the Second Appellate District which encompasses LA
County recused themselves. Previous to the Sturgeon case, such recusal did not
occur. In fact, Superior Court judges, Court of Appeal justices and California
Supreme Court justices refused to recuse themselves when challenged over LA
County payments to them, struck CCP Section 170.3 objections based upon the
LA County payments to them, denied writs seeking to disqualify judges who had
received such illegal payments from presiding over LA County cases and refused
to review such denials.

16.  Such conduct is continuing through the present.

17. A recent breakthrough has occurred on April 18, 2011 in the case of
Marina Strand Colony II Homeowners Association v. County of Los Angeles,
LASC Case No. BS 109420 in which Judge James C. Chalfant, who received
approximately $608,590.03 in illegal LA County payments recused himself from

hearing Fine’s Motion for Renewal of the Motion of the Motion to Void and

22632WPD/T7a/ -8- Verified First Amended Complaint




Case 2

Mol . )

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

:LO-cv-OOO48-JST-CW_ Document 45 Filed 05/05/11 Page 9 of 123 Page ID #:438

Annul All Orders and Judgments Including those in the Contempt Proceedings in
the Case Made by Judge Yaffe who had received approximately $827,612.55 in
illegal payments from LA County. This is the same case in which Judge Yaffe
ordered Fine incarcerated for 18 months on contempt of court charges after Fine
disqualified him for having taken payments from LA County and not disclosing
such. The LA County payments to Judge Yaffe were approximately $827,615.55.
Magistrate Judge Woehrle, the same Magistrate Judge in this case, held in the
writ of habeas corpus case involving such illegal payments and Judge Yaffe’s
incarceration order, that due process was not denied because of such illegal
payment. Judge Yaffe later admitted in Court papers that he had made a false
order in the case on March 18, 2008 when he stated that Fine did not have the
right to challenge him over the LA County payments, Magistrate Judge Woehrle,
refused to change her decision despite this admission of fraud upon the court.

18.  The April 13, 2011Notice of Change of Date, Place and Time
showing the transfer of the motion to Judge Chalfant, causing him to recuse
himself, showed the violations of law engendered by the illegal LA County
payments and showed the exact identical relationship between the judges who
received illegal LA County payments and the State Bar charges against Fine for
having challenged these judges for either having received the illegal LA County
payments or for other illegal actions. Every charge in the State Bar Notice of
Disciplinary Charges involved a judge or commissioner acting as a “temporary
judge” who had received illegal LA County payments, or who was then involved
in a case with Fine, LA County and/or the President of the State Bar or a member
of the State Bar Board of Governors, or their law firm. For example, (1) Judges
sued by Fine for taking illegal LA County payments were (a) Judge James C.
Chalfant-$608,590.03, (b) Court of Appeal Justice and former LA Superior
Court Judge Kathryn Doi Todd-$324,971.54, and ©) “temporary judge” and LA

22632WPD/T7a/ -9- Verified First Amended Complaint
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Superior Court Commissioner Bruce E. Mitchell- $638,498.03; (2) other
Superior Court judges presiding over cases related to the State Bar case were ,
(a) Judge Elihu Berle-$637,206.88 presiding over the case of Coalition to Save
the Marina, et al., v. County of Los Angeles, Marina Pacific Associates and
Bellport, LASC Case No. BS 092794 in which Sheldon H. Sloan, the President
of the State Bar was representing Marina Pacific Associates and Bellport, while
Fine was representing the Coalition to Save the Marina et al., and (b) Judge
Sousson G. Bruguera-547,232.80 presiding over the case of Coalition to Save
the Marina and Marina Tenants Association et al., v. County of Los Angeles et
al., LASC Case No. BS 089838, in which Judge Bruguera struck a CCP Section
170.3 Objection based upon her receiving illegal LA County payments, the Court
of Appeal summarily denied the writ and the California Supreme Court denied
review; and (3) the $30,000.00 LA County payment to the Southern California
Special Olympics during the time that defendant State Bar Court Judge Richard
A. Honn was a member of its Board of Governors and simultaneously presiding
over Fine’s State Bar case.

19.  The April 13, 2011 Notice described the history, effect and illegality
of the LA County payments and their relation to the State Bar Action as follows:

Any decision in this matter by him [Judge Chalfant] or any other judge
who has received payments from LA County is void.

Further, Judge Chalfant was the judge in the LA Superior Court case of
Silva v. Garcetti, LASC Case No.----- in which the LA District Attorney’s
Office admitted to unlawfully withholding approximately $14 million of
support money from women, children and payers when the payees could
not be found. Despite the admissions in discovery and in open court, Judge
Chalfant dismissed the case at the end of trial. Judge Chalfant and LA
County obstructed justice by concealing the payments from LA County to
Judge Chalfant. Judge Chalfant’s decision in the Silva v. Garcetti case was
also void and must be set aside, sua sponte by the court.

On the appeal of the Silva case, when the payments were discovered,
Division 2, of the Second Appellate District of the Court of Appeal

22632WPD/T7a/ -10 - Verified First Amended Complaint
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refused to allow Silva to raise the concealment of the payments. Division 2
Court of Appeal Justice Kathryn Doi Todd, who was then recently
appointed to the Court of Appeal, was concealing that she had received
LA County payments in the amount of $324,971.54 while she was a
Superior Court judge serving in LA County as set forth in the attachment
hereto. Such payments were further concealed by Justices Boren and Nott,
the other members of the Division 2 appellate panel who knew of such
payments. The Division 2 panel of the Second Appellate District of the
Court of Appeal upheld the dismissal in February, 2002, without ever
disclosing the LA County payments to Kathryn Doi Todd. The Court of
Appeal decision was also void and must be set aside sua sponte by the
court.

On March 14, 2002, Justices Boren, Nott and Doi Todd, the same panel of
Division 2 of the Second Appellate District, upheld a contempt judgment
against Fine entered on September 24, 2001 by Commissioner Bruce E.
Mitchell, who was claiming to act as a “temporary judge” after the entry of
the judgment and the time to appeal the entry of the judgment had passed
in the LA Superior Court case of DeFlores et al., v. EHG, et al., LASC
Case No. BC 150607, without having obtained a stipulation from the
parties. The panel published its decision as Fine v. Superior Court, (2002)
97 Cal.App.4th 651.

The DeFlores case was a class action case brought by Fine. Fine obtained
class certification of a liability class over the objections of other
“plaintiffs’ counsel” who had brought individual cases and defendants’
counsel. Fine then negotiated a $9.2 million global settlement including a
$7.86 million settlement for the class. Commissioner Mitchell was the
“temporary judge” for pre trial procedures only, as he was the
Commissioner in Department 59, the then designated “Class Action
Department” in the LA Superior Court for pre trial matters. Commissioner
Mitchell was also the Commissioner in the designated “Eminent Domain
Department” of the LA Superior Court for pre trial matters. During this
entire time period, Commissioner Mitchell was receiving payments from
LA County while deciding cases involving LA County and concealing
such payments. Commissioner Mitchell received $638,498.03 from LA
County as shown in the attachment hereto.

Fine subsequently filed a writ of habeas corpus in the U.S. District Court,
Fine v. Superior Court, USDC Case No. CV-02-4647. The District Court
entered a stay of execution of sentence and order to show cause re
immediate entry of habeas corpus relief without further hearing on August
12, 2002. On August 21, 2002, the LA Superior Court entered an order in
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the case of DeFlores et al., v. EHG et al. stating the September 24, 2001
Order and Judgment of Contempt “is void and annulled. This Court may
on its own motion, vacate an order or judgment which is void on its face.”
The face of the September 24, 2001 Order and Judgment of Contempt
included Commissioner Mitchell’s claim as a “temporary judge” in the
DeFlores case. Despite the voiding and annulling of the underlying
September 24, 2001 Order and Judgment of Contempt, and its non
existence, Justices Boren, Nott and Doi Todd refused to follow the law
and withdraw their “void” March 14, 2002 decision of Fine v. Superior
Court which was based upon the void and annulled September 24, 2001
Order and Judgment of Contempt.

In June, 2002, Fine filed the federal civil rights defendants class action
entitled Silva v. County of Los Angeles, James C. Chalfant, Kathryn Doi
Todd, Bruce E. Mitchell, Roger W. Boren, and Michael G. Nott, USDC
Case No. CV-02-04645. The suit alleged that the LA County payments to
LA Superior Court judges and LA Superior Court Commissioners sitting
as “temporary judges” violated Article VI, Section 19 of the California
Constitution, various canons of the Code of Judicial Ethics, Section 170.1
of the Code of Civil Procedure and the First, Fifth and Fourteenth
Amendments to the U.S. Constitution. The suit sought injunctive relief to
enjoin the payments to any person who sat on a case involving LA County
and to require the disclosure of the payments by any person sitting on a
case involving LA County. The suit was dismissed on procedural standing
grounds, even though Silva then had a case pending to return monies
illegally withheld by LA County in the LA Superior Court. This gave him
Article I1I standing under the U.S. Constitution.

In 2008, Division 1 of the Fourth Appellate District of the California
Court of Appeal in the case of Sturgeon v. County of Los Angeles, (2008)
167 Cal.App.4th 630, held that the LA County payments to the State
judges sitting in LA County violated Article VI, Section 19 of the
California Constitution. In 2010, Division 1 of the Fourth Appellate
District of the California Court of Appeal held that Senate Bill SBX 2 11
allowing temporary payments commencing May 21, 2009 on the same
terms and conditions as existed on July 1, 2008 were a temporary measure
but did not provide a permanent solution to the violation of Article VI,
Section 19. Such temporary payments in LA County expired on June 30,
2009, as they were only instituted on an annual basis in LA County.
Further, Senate Bill SBX 2 11 did not provide any immunity from
prosecution, civil liability or disciplinary action to the judges who
received such “temporary payments” or any payments after the expiration
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of the “temporary payments”.
Under the language of Senate Bill SBX 2 11, the LA County “temporary
payments” expired on 6/30/09 and all LA County payments since that time
were and are illegal and violate Article VI., Section 19 of the California
Constitution.
The Fraudulent State Bar Action Against Fine Was Secretly Commenced by
a Commissioner Mitchell Who Received Illegal Payments and Was
Prosecuted for Such by Fine, Allowed by Board of Governors Members and
Presidents Who Had Personal Interests in Disbarring Fine to Benefit
Themselves and Their Clients and Corrupted by LA County Payments to
the Charity on Which the State Bar Hearing Judge Was a Member of the
Board of Governors While He Was Presiding Over and Deciding Fine’s
Case
On December 19, 2008 the State Bar’s recommendation for disbarment of
Fine became final. The recommendation was based upon a charge that the
filing of the 2002 Silva federal civil rights suit alleging that the LA
County payments to the state judges and commissioners sitting as
“temporary judges” violated Article VI, Section 19 of the California
Constitution was an act of “moral turpitude”. The recommendation was a
“fraud” as the State Bar knew that such payments had been held to violate
Article VI, Section 19 in the Sturgeon case.
Other recommendations for disbarment for “moral turpitude” were based
upon charges related to the filing of “disqualifications” against
Commissioner Mitchell who had illegally refused to leave the DeFlores
case after he was no longer the “temporary judge”, the filing of the federal
civil rights case of Fine v. Mitchell et al., USDC Case No. CV-03-07332
to require Judges Boren, Nott, Todd, Czuleger, Dukes, and the Clerks of
the LA Superior Court and the California Court of Appeals to perform
administrative acts and to be enjoined from acting on the void judgments
entered by these judges based upon the void acts of Commissioner
Mitchell unlawfully acting as a “temporary judge” in the DeFlores case,
and the filing of a writ of mandamus after Judge Horn changed his
substantive decision holding that Mitchell was “not impartial” to he was
“impartial” in violation of CCP Section 473(d) after the writ of mandamus
had been filed and he had lost jurisdiction to act in the disqualification of
Commissioner Mitchell in the LA Superior Court case of Shinkle et al v.
City of Los Angeles, LASC Case No. BC 154305.
The Shinkle case was a taxpayer class action case brought by Fine to
require the City of LA to change its method of charging for “sewer service
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charges” and to collect damages. Immediately after the suit was filed, the
City of LA changed its method of charging for sewer service charges to
conform to the method set forth in the complaint. Commissioner Mitchell,
acting as a “temporary judge” denied class” certification in direct violation
of the holding in the California Supreme Court decision of Linder v.
Thrifty Oil (2000) 23 Cal.4th 429.

These charges and recommendations were also fraudulent. The State Bar
knew that Commissioner Mitchell had voided and annulled his claim to be
a “temporary judge” in the DeFlores case and that all of his acts were null
and void as were any orders or decisions based upon such void and null
acts and that a “higher court” cannot validate or reinstate a void order or
judgment. Further, the State Bar knew that under CCP Section 473(d), a
judge cannot change the substantive part of his judgment after the
judgment is entered and the notice of appeal or writ is filed.

The State Bar was acting as surrogate for the judges who had taken illegal
payments from LA County, LA County who had made the illegal
payments and the attorneys who were litigating cases against Fine and his
clients in cases in which LA County was a party and their clients were at
risk to lose millions of dollars.

In particular, the State Bar was acting at the behest of Commissioner
Mitchell who it had concealed as its “complaining party”, in the case
against Fine. Gerald E. Magnuson of the State Bar made a false
declaration claiming that the State Bar had “developed the case” in March,
2006. In 2007, during the trial, Commissioner Mitchell admitted that he
was the “complaining party”. The State Bar had concealed this
information.

State Bar Hearing Department Judge Richard A. Honn, who was the State
Bar judge on Fine’s case, concealed the fact that LA County contributed
$30, 000.00 to the Southern California Special Olympics during the case.
Judge Honn was a member of the Board of Governors of the Southern
California Special Olympics along with a representative of LA County.
This monetary payment by LA County, a person likely to appear before
Judge Honn in the case, voided Judge Honn’s decision. Under CCP
Section 170.1, and Code of Judicial Ethics, Canons 2A, 3E (1) and (2) and
4D(1), Judge Honn was obligated to disclose the payment and recuse
himself.

Members of the State Bar Board of Governors who were actively
involved in cases against Fine had an interest in having Fine disbarred for
their personal benefit and the financial benefit of themselves, their clients
and the judges who were receiving illegal payments from LA County.
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State Bar President and Board of Governors Member Sheldon H. Sloan,
was opposing Fine in the case of Coalition to Save the Marina et al. v.
County of Los Angeles and Marina Pacific Associates and Bellport, LASC
Case No. BS 092794, representing Jerry B. Epstein and his interests. Judge
Elihu Berle who presided in such case received $637,206.88 in illegal
payments from LA County, as shown in earlier pleadings.
The subsequent State Bar President and Board of Governors Member
Jeffrey Bleich’s, firm Munger, Tolles & Olson, represented LA County in
negotiating the lease renewal in the present case with Jerry B. Epstein and
his interests. As shown in previous pleadings, Judge Yaffe received
$827,612.55 in illegal payments from LA County.
Laura Chick, a Board of Governors “Public Member”, was a member of
the LA City Council during the time of the Shinkle case and was actively
involved in the case of Etina et al. v. City of Los Angeles and Playa Vista,
as LA City Controller. Fine exposed her for having had a $5,000.00
“behest” given in her name by Playa Vista one day after she released a
report favorable to Playa Vista and while such report was still being
considered for comment.
The linkage to stop Fine from pursuing the corruption of the LA County
judges deciding cases for LA County by disbarring Fine to prevent him
from pursuing then current cases against LA County was not limited to the
cases set forth in the State Bar Notice of Disciplinary Charges. At this
same time Fine was pursuing the consolidated case of Coalition to Save
the Marina and Marina Tenants Association et al. v. County of Los
Angeles et al., LASC Case No. BS 089838 to change the LA County
leases with developers in Marina del Rey and obtain up to $700 million to
$1 billion in lost rental monies which the developers should have paid the
LA County taxpayers over the last ten years. Judge Sousson G. Bruguera
dismissed the case before it could go to trial. As shown in the attachment
hereto she received $547,232.80 of illegal payments from LA County.
Fine has filed a case in the U.S. District Court, Fine v. State Bar et al.,
USDC Case No. CV-10-0048 to enjoin the State Bar from disbarring him
based upon the extrinsic fraud of the State Bar.

The law is clear that judges who receive payments from persons appearing

before them are not fit to serve as judicial officers and have violated the
“intangible right to honest services”.

The California Supreme Court case of Adams v. Commission on Judicial
Performance (July 20, 1995) 10 Cal.4th 866, 904 Rehearing Denied Sept.,
14, 1995, (judge accepted gifts, financial benefits and favors from
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attorneys and a litigant appearing in the judge’s court, this required
disqualification with respect to matters involving these attorneys or their
firms, pages 879, 913-914 citing Adams v. Commission on Judicial
Performance (1994), 8 Cal.4th 630, 661-663 (Adams I) which represented
“... conduct prejudicial to the administration of justice that brings the
judicial office into disrepute..”); and relevant United States law, in
particular 18 U.S.C. Section 1346 - the intangible right to honest services,
(which U.S. Constitution Article 6, Cl. 2 requires state judges to obey),
mandate that payments by a party in a case to a judge are illegal,
particularly in California which has a “unique” bribery statute.

The cases are: (A) U.S. v. Frega, U.S. v. Malkus, U.S. v. Adams (1999)
179 F.3d 793 (the payment by a party and an attorney appearing before a
judge to such judge are bribery and violate 18 U.S.C. Section 1346-the
intangible right to honest services) stating at 805-807:

Because no linkage of payment and specific official act is required under
California law and because the indictment incorporates the relevant state
bribery statutes, which, in turn, state the elements of the bribery offenses,
the indictment is valid in this respect.;
and
(B) Skilling v. United States, (Decided June 24, 2010) U.S.
(18 U.S.C.

Section 346 “criminalizes only the bribe and kick-back core of the pre-
McNally case law, page 45 of opinion.)

The “Corrupted Judges” Can Be Immediately Replaced with Judges Pro

Tem at “No Cost” to the Taxpayers Until New “Untainted” Judges Are
Elected

None of the above judges or any judge who accepted money from LA
County or any county should be deciding cases relating to LA County or
any county, or even sitting as judicial officers if the law is to be followed.
However, given the reality that no government law enforcement official
from the U.S. Attorney General, to the State Attorney General, to the U.S.
Attorney, to the District Attorney is obeying the law and prosecuting these
illegal actions, the Commission on Judicial Performance is not removing
the judges and commissioners for “obstruction of justice”, and the
legislature is not impeaching the judges, it falls upon the people to remove
these judges.
This can be easily done! Further it can be done at no cost to the taxpayers!
Every court has an established “judge pro tem” program under which
lawyers serve as judges at no cost to the public. This program can be used
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to replace all 430 judges and all 150 commissioners in LA County, all
1,900 Superior Court judges across the state or as many as are receiving or
have received payments from counties and all Court of Appeal and
Supreme Court justices who have received payments from counties. The
replaced judges can be placed on “leave of absence” as they do not qualify
to be judges or justices, as they are “unfit” to serve.

The solution is immediate and cost effective. Within days to weeks,
California will have a “clean”, “uncorrupted” judicial system.

It can start with a “judge pro tem” to set aside the void judgment and
orders in this case and all of the cases mentioned herein.

19.  After Judge Chalfant’s April 18, 2011, recusal, an April 26, 2011

Notice of Recusal was filed showing the case being transferred to Department 1
for re assignment. Such April 26, 2011 Notice of Recusal further elaborated on
the illegality of the county payments, the effect of the recusal as a manifestation
of the recognition of the legal principle that judges who have accepted illegal
county payments cannot preside over cases in which the county making the
payments is a party, has an interest or is likely to appear and that judges who
received illegal county payments are required under California and federal law to
be removed from office, prosecuted for bribery, obstruction of justice violation
of the intangible right to honest services and for repayment of all monies plus

damages of 20%.

19. The April 26,2011 Notice stated as follows in relevant part:

The Recusal Manifests the Recognition That Judges Who Have
Accepted Illegal County Payments Cannot Preside over Cases in
Which the County Making the Payments Is a Party, Has an Interest,
Is or Will Be a Witness or Is Likely to Appear

Judge Chalfant’s recusal after the filing of the Notice of Change of Place,
Date and Time for Notice of Motion and Motion for Renewal of the
Motion to Void and Annul All Orders and Judgments Including Those
in the Contempt Proceedings in the Case Made by Judge Yaffe
manifests the recognition that a judge who has received payments from a
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county cannot preside over a case in which the county making the
payments is a party, has an interest, is or will be a witness or is likely to
appear. For twenty five years, the judges have been fighting to conceal the
county payments, have been making decisions for the counties making the
payments to them without disclosing the county payments to them and
have been violating California and federal laws prohibiting such conduct.
Now, after twelve years of battle and 18 months of false imprisonment,
Judge Chalfant, has recused himself in a case in which he is receiving
payments from LA County, a party to the case. This recusal is an irony of
fate. Judge Chalfant is the judge who started the entire battle by not
disclosing the LA County payments to him in the 1999 case of Silva v.
Garcetti. He dismissed the case after trial and after the District Attorney
admitted to illegally withholding $14 million of child and spousal support
payments which should have been paid to the women and children within
six months for up to two years, causing undue and unnecessary hardship.
Thus started the twelve year saga which resulted in the disbarment of Fine
for challenging the illegal payments in federal court, the 18 months of
illegal incarceration in this case and the loss of at least a billion dollars to
LA County taxpayers due to “sweetheart leases” for land in Marina del
Rey by the LA County Supervisors and developers, including the present
lease and illegal approvals for the Shores project in this case.

It is truly ironic, that Judge Chalfant should be the judge to finally lead the
way to “set things right”.

Judge Yaffe and All Other Judges Who Received County Payments Are
Required under California and Federal Law to Be Removed from Office,
Prosecuted for Bribery, Obstruction of Justice, Violation of the Intangible
Right to Honest Services and for Repayment of All Monies Received plus

Damages of 20%.

As shown in Fine’s Reply Brief filed March 2, 2011and in the Notice of
Change of Place, Date and Time for Notice of Motion and Motion for
Renewal of the Motion to Void and Annul All Orders and Judgments
Including Those in the Contempt Proceedings in the Case Made by
Judge Yaffe filed April 13, 2011, every judge who received payments
from a county was not fit to sit as a judge, was subject to be removed from
judicial office for having received a payment from a party appearing
before him/her under the precedent California Supreme Court case of
Adams v. Commission on Judicial Performance (July 20, 1995) 10 Cal.4th
866, 904 Rehearing Denied Sept., 14, 1995, (judge accepted gifts,
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financial benefits and favors from attorneys and a litigant appearing in the
judge’s court, this required disqualification with respect to matters
involving these attorneys or their firms, pages 879, 913-914 citing Adams
v. Commission on Judicial Performance (1994), 8 Cal.4th 630, 661-663
(Adams I) which represented “... conduct prejudicial to the administration
of justice that brings the judicial office into disrepute..”); and relevant
United States law, in particular 18 U.S.C. Section 1346 - the intangible
right to honest services, (which U.S. Constitution Article 6, Cl. 2 requires
state judges to obey). This latter federal law mandates that payments by a
party in a case to a judge are illegal, particularly in California which has a
“unique” bribery statute.

The cases are: (A) U.S. v. Frega, U.S. v. Malkus, U.S. v. Adams (1999)
179 F.3d 793 (the payment by a party and an attorney appearing before a
judge to such judge are bribery and violate 18 U.S.C. Section 1346-the
intangible right to honest services) stating at 805-807:

Because no linkage of payment and specific official act is required under
California law and because the indictment incorporates the relevant state

bribery statutes, which, in turn, state the elements of the bribery offenses,
the indictment is valid in this respect.;

and

(B) Skilling v. United States, (Decided June 24, 2010) us.

(18 U.S.C.
Section 346 “criminalizes only the bribe and kick-back core of the pre-
McNally case law, page 45 of opinion.)

Additionally, Section 5 of California Senate Bill SBX 2 11 enacted
2/20/09 as emergency budget legislation and made effective 5/21/09
admitted that the county payments to judges were criminal by giving
retroactive immunity from criminal prosecution, civil liability and
disciplinary action to governmental entities, officials and employees of
governmental entities for payments made to judges by counties. Such
section stated:

SEC. 5. Notwithstanding any other law, no governmental entity, or
officer or employee of a governmental entity, shall incur any liability or
be subject to prosecution or disciplinary action because of benefits
provided to a judge under the official action of a governmental entity
prior to the effective date of this act on the ground that those benefits
were not authorized under law. (Emphasis added.)
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Such Section 5 was void ab initio under the Single Subject Rule of Article
IV, Section 9 of the California Constitution. Article IV, Section 9 states:
SEC. 9. A statute shall embrace but one subject, which shall be
expressed in its title. If a statute embraces a subject not expressed

in its title, only the part not expressed is void. A statute may not

be amended by reference to its title. A section of a statute may not

be amended unless the section is re-enacted as amended. (Emphasis
added.)

The title of Senate Bill SBX 2 11 as amended 2/14/09 is “An act to add
Sections 68220, 68221, and 68222 to the Government Code, relating to
judges.” The title did not mention immunity for governmental entities,
officials and employees. Section 1 of Senate Bill SBX 2 11 stated as
follows:

SECTION 1. The Legislature finds and declares all of the following:

(a) It is the intent of the Legislature to address the decision of the Court of
Appeal in Sturgeon v. County of Los Angeles (2008) 167 Cal. App.4th
630, regarding county-provided benefits for judges.

The Sturgeon case held that the county payments to the judges violated
Article VI, Section 19 of the California Constitution.

Under Article IV, Section 9, Section 5 of Senate Bill SBX 2 11 was void.
The voidness was particularly true in relation to immunity from criminal
prosecution and immunity from disciplinary action. The California Penal
Code Sections, 7, 92, 93, 94, 96.5, 98 and 182(a)(5) made these county
payments to judges “bribes”, “obstruction of justice”, conspiracy and
required the judges to forfeit their offices. Such sections state as follows:

Penal Code Section 7

The following words have in this code the signification attached

to them in this section, unless otherwise apparent from the context:

3. The word "corruptly" imports a wrongful design to acquire or cause
some pecuniary or other advantage to the person guilty of the act or
omission referred to, or to some other person.

6. The word "bribe" signifies anything of value or advantage, present or
prospective, or any promise or undertaking to give any, asked, given, or
accepted, with a corrupt intent to influence, unlawfully, the person to
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whom it is given, in his or her action, vote, or opinion, in any public or
official capacity.

Penal Code Section 92

92. Every person who gives or offers to give a bribe to any judicial
officer, juror, referee, arbitrator, or umpire, or to any person who may be
authorized by law to hear or determine any question or controversy,
with intent to influence his vote, opinion, or decision upon any matter
or question which is or may be brought before him for decision, is
punishable by imprisonment in the state prison for two, three or four
years. (Emphasis added.)

Penal Code Section 93

93. (a) Every judicial officer, juror, referee, arbitrator, or umpire, and
every person authorized by law to hear or determine any question or
controversy, who asks, receives, or agrees to receive, any bribe, upon
any agreement or understanding that his or her vote, opinion, or
decision upon any matters or question which is or may be brought
before him or her for decision, shall be influenced thereby, is
punishable by imprisonment in the state prison for two, three, or four
years and, in cases where no bribe has been actually received,

by a restitution fine of not less than two thousand dollars ($2,000) or
not more than ten thousand dollars ($10,000) or, in cases where a
bribe was actually received, by a restitution fine of at least the actual
amount of the bribe received or two thousand dollars ($2,000),
whichever is greater, or any larger amount of not more than double
the amount of any bribe received or ten thousand dollars ($10,000),
whichever is greater.

(b) In imposing a restitution fine under this section, the court shall
consider the defendant's ability to pay the fine. (Emphasis added.)

Penal Code Section 94

94. Every judicial officer who asks or receives any emolument,
gratuity, or reward, or any promise thereof, except such as may be
authorized by law, for doing any official act, is guilty of a
misdemeanor. The lawful compensation of a temporary judge shall be
prescribed by Judicial Council rule. Every judicial officer who shall ask or
receive the whole or any part of the fees allowed by law to any
stenographer or reporter appointed by him or her, or any other person, to
record the proceedings of any court or investigation held by him or her,
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1 shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall forfeit
2 his or her office. Any stenographer or reporter, appointed by any judicial
officer in this state, who shall pay, or offer to pay, the whole or any part of
the fees allowed him or her by law, for his or her appointment or retention
4 in office, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof
shall be forever disqualified from holding any similar office in the courts

> of this state. (Emphasis added.)
6 Penal Code Section 96.5
7 96.5. (a) Every judicial officer, court commissioner, or referee who
8 commits any act that he or she knows perverts or obstructs justice, is
guilty of a public offense punishable by imprisonment in a county jail for
9 not more than one year.
10 (b) Nothing in this section prohibits prosecution under paragraph (5) of
subdivision (a) of Section 182 of the Penal Code or any other law.
11 (Emphasis added.)
12 Penal Code Section 98
13 98. Every officer convicted of any crime defined in this Chapter, in
" addition to the punishment prescribed, forfeits his office and is

forever disqualified from holding any office in this State. (Emphasis
15 added.)
Penal Code Section 182(a)(5)

16
17 182. (a) If two or more persons conspire:

(5) To commit any act injurious to the public health, to public morals, or
18 to pervert or obstruct justice, or the due administration of the laws.
19 They are punishable as follows:

% ok skok ok
20 When they conspire to commit any other felony, they shall be punishable
21 in the same manner and to the same extent as is provided for the
- punishment of that felony. If the felony is one for which different

punishments are prescribed for different degrees, the jury

23 or court which finds the defendant guilty thereof shall determine the
degree of the felony the defendant conspired to commit. If the degree is
not so determined, the punishment for conspiracy to commit the felony

25 shall be that prescribed for the lesser degree, except in the case of
conspiracy to commit murder, in which case the punishment shall be that
prescribed for murder in the first degree.

27 If the felony is conspiracy to commit two or more felonies which have

28 different punishments and the commission of those felonies constitute but

24

26
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one offense of conspiracy, the penalty shall be that prescribed for the
felony which has the greater maximum term. (Emphasis added.)

None of the aforementioned criminal statutes were mentioned in the title
or the body of Senate Bill SBX 2 11. Yet, Senate Bill SBX 2 11 attempted
to amend each of them by granting retroactive immunity to governmental
entities, officials and employees from each of these laws.

The voidness was also apparent in relation to civil liability. California
Government Code Section 26525 requires the District Attorney to institute
suit for the full repayment of all of the monies plus 20% damages. Such
section states as follows:

26525. If the board of supervisors without authority of law orders
any amount paid as salary, fees, or for any other purposes and the
money is actually paid, or if any county officer draws any warrant in his
own favor or in favor of any other person without authorization by the
board or law and the warrant is paid, the district attorney shall institute
suit in the name of the county to recover the money paid, and 20
percent damages for the use thereof. If the money has not been paid on
the order or warrants, the district attorney upon receiving notice thereof
shall commence suit in the name of the county to restrain the payment. An
order of the board is not necessary in order to maintain the suits.
(Emphasis added.)

Senate Bill SBX 2 11 did not mention or refer to Government Code
Section 26525. Section 5 of Senate Bill SBX 2 11 is void as an attempt to
create retroactive immunity from civil liability for the repayment of the
monies that the judges received from the counties which were held to
violate Article VI, Section 19 of the California Constitution in the
Sturgeon case.

In addition to the violation of Article IV, Section 9, Senate Bill SBX 2 11
also violated other California Constitutional provisions. Section 5 of
Senate Bill SBX 2 11 unconstitutionally amends Article VI, section 18(d)
which sets forth the duties of the Commission on Judicial Performance to
discipline judges. Such article VI, section 18(d) states in relevant part:

Except as provided in subdivision (f), the Commission on Judicial
Performance may (1) retire a judge for disability that seriously interferes
with the performance of the judge's duties and is or is likely to become
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permanent, or (2) censure a judge or former judge or remove a judge for
action occurring not more than 6 years prior to the commencement of the
judge's current term or of the former judge's last term that constitutes
willful misconduct in office, persistent failure or inability to perform the
judge's duties, habitual intemperance in the use of intoxicants or drugs, or
conduct prejudicial to the administration of justice that brings the judicial
office into disrepute,...

Section 5 of Senate Bill SBX 2 11 also is unconstitutional because it (1)
unconstitutionally amends California Constitution Article IV, Section 7
(c)(1)(A)- the right to dismiss or hear charges or complaints against a
public officer; (2) unconstitutionally amends Article IV, Section 8(d)-
urgency bill cannot “grant any franchise or special privilege, or create any
vested right or interest; (3) violates Article IV, Section 17- prohibition
authorizing a county “to grant, extra compensation or extra allowance to a
public officer, public employee, or contractor after service has been
rendered ..”; (4) violates Article IV, Section 18(b)- impeachment of
judges; and (5) violates Article I, Section 7(b). Such section states:

(b) A citizen or class of citizens may not be granted privileges or
immunities not granted on the same terms to all citizens. Privileges or
immunities granted by the Legislature may be altered or revoked.

Senate Bill SBX 2 11 granted retroactive immunity from criminal
prosecution, civil liability and disciplinary action to only governmental
entities, officers and employees, leaving everyone else subject to the
aforementioned statutes and constitutional provisions.

The California Constitution can only be amended or revised pursuant to
Article 18. The enactment of “emergency legislation” during a special
session of the Legislature is not an authorized manner to amend or revise
the California Constitution under Article 18. The Legislature may propose
an amendment (Sections 1 and 2) to be voted upon by the citizens (Section
4) or the voters may pass an amendment by initiative (Section 3). Sections
3 and 4 state as follows:

SEC. 3. The electors may amend the Constitution by initiative.

All LA Superior Court Judges, Ninety Per Cent of California Judges and
Five of the Six Current California Supreme Court Judges Are Encompassed
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by the Illegal County Payments, Subject to Criminal Prosecution,
Mandatory Removal from Office and Civil Liability under California and
Federal Law.

As shown above, any judge who received the illegal count payments is
subject to criminal prosecution, mandatory removal from office and civil
liability under California and federal law. Under CCP Section 170.1,
Canons 2A, 3E (1) and (2) and 4(D)(1), they were required to recuse
themselves from any case in which the county was a party or had an
interest or was or would be a a witness or was likely to appear, they were
required to disclose the county payments and they were required to not
accept the county payments in the first instance.

Further having accepted the county payments and violated the law, every
order and judgment made by any of the judges or justices was void as they
did not have “subject matter jurisdiction” due to the “extrinsic fraud” and
obstruction of justice committed by them and the county.

The result was that approximately $350 million of illegal payments were
made by LA County to the judges sitting in LA County which now must
be paid back with 20% damages ($70 million), all of the judges who
received the illegal monies must be removed from office and prosecuted
for bribery and obstruction of justice, if the law is to mean anything and be
respected and obeyed. Individually, this means, Judge Yaffe-$827,612.55,
Judge Carolyn B. Kuhl -approximately $737,000.00, Judge Elihu Berle -
$637,206.88, Judge James C. Chalfant - $608,590.38, Judge Sousson G.
Bruguera -$547,232.80, Court of Appeal Justice Kathryn Doi Todd -
$324,971.54, Judge O’Brien- $277,925.64, and Commissioner Mitchell-
$638,498.03, amongst others, including Judge Kuhl’s husband Judge
William Highberger who also received approximately $800,000.00

The amounts of money received by individual judges is staggering and the
total amount is colossal. As stated, in LA County alone, approximately
$350 million.

On the other hand, the damage to the public through void judgments is
beyond any form of measurement.

20. At all times, the State judges sitting in the LA Superior Court and
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other Superior Courts, Court of Appeal justices sitting in the Second Appellate
District and other appellate districts and California Supreme Court justices who
had taken payments from LA County or other counties while they were Superior
Court judges knew that they had violated the law. They also knew that they
could not preside over cases in which LA County or the county from whom they
had taken the illegal payment was a party, had an interest, or was likely to appear
in any form, as they would be “obstructing justice”.

21.  Upon information and belief, LA County payments to Superior
Court judges started in the 1980's at definitely as early as 1985 and possibly
earlier and in Alameda County also in the 1980's. The individual defendants,
Chief Justice of the California Supreme Court Ronald M. George formerly a
Superior Court Judge in LA County and Presiding Judge of the LA Superior
Court in 1985 or 1986, Associate Justice Joyce L. Kennard formerly a Superior
Court judge in LA County, and Associate Justice of the California Supreme
Court Carlos R. Moreno formerly a Superior Court judge in LA County 1993-
1998 engaged in obstruction of justice and other violations of law by having
taken illegal payments from LA County when they were Superior Court judges,
concealing such through the present and refusing to disqualify themselves in
cases in which LA County or the county from whom they had taken the illegal
payment was a party, had an interest, or was likely to appear in any form. The
individual defendants, Chief Justice Tani Cantil-Sakauye formerly a Superior
Court judge in Sacramento County 1997-2005, Associate Justice Ming W. Chin
formerly a Superior Court judge in Alameda County, and Associate Justice Carol
A. Corrigan formerly a Superior Court judge in Alameda County 1991-1994
engaged in obstruction of justice and other violations of law by having taken
illegal payments from Sacramento and Alameda Counties, respectively when

they were Superior Court judges, concealing such through the present and
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refusing to disqualify themselves in cases in which the county from whom they
had taken the illegal payment was a party, had an interest, or was likely to appear
in any form. The individual defendant, Associate Justice Marvin R. Baxter, is a
member of the Judicial Council of California and chairs its Policy Coordination
and Liaison Committee. In such capacities he was engaged in or responsible for
the drafting of Senate Bill SBX 2 11. He engaged in obstruction of justice and
other violations of law by having concealed the illegal payments from counties
to the other Supreme Court justices and by having participated in decisions
relating to county payments to judges while having been involved in the drafting
of Senate Bill SBX 2 11 through his activities on the Judicial Council of
California.

22.  All of the individual defendant Supreme Court Justices committed,
and are committing obstruction of justice, have violated and are violating the
U.S. constitution and have violated and are violating their oath of office to
uphold the Constitution and the laws of the United States by presiding over
cases in which counties had, or have an interest while illegally claiming the
retroactive immunity of California Senate Bill SBX 2 11 or having participated
in the drafting of such.

23.  As Supreme Court justices, each was held to know the law (a) that
the taking of such illegal payments was a violation of the California Penal Code
“bribery” sections 92, 93, and 94, (b) that the taking of such illegal payments and
the covering up of such act and deciding plaintiff’s case was an obstruction of
justice (California Penal Code Section 96.5), ©) that these same acts were a
conspiracy to obstruct justice (California Penal Code Section 182(a)(5), (d) that
if they were convicted of any of these crimes they would forfeit their office and
forever be disqualified from holding office in the state (California Penal Code

Section 98), (e) that California Government Code Section 26525 requires the
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District Attorney to institute suit for the full repayment of all of the monies plus
20% damages, (f) that the taking of such illegal payments violated the
“intangible right to honest services” 18 U.S.C. Section 1346 and (g) that under
CCP Section 170.1(a)(6)(A)©), Code of Judicial Ethics Canons 2A, 3E (1) and
(2) and 4(D)(1) judges were required to recuse themselves from any case in
which the county was a party, or had an interest or was or would be a witness or
was likely to appear, they were required to disclose the county payments and
they were required to not accept the county payments in the first instance.

24.  As Supreme Court justices, each was held to know the law that
every judge or justice who received payments from a county was not fit to sitas a
judge or justice, was subject to be removed from judicial office for having
received a payment from a party appearing before him/her under the precedent
California Supreme Court case of Adams v. Commission on Judicial
Performance (July 20, 1995) 10 Cal.4th 866, 904 Rehearing Denied Sept., 14,
1995, (judge accepted gifts, financial benefits and favors from attorneys and a
litigant appearing in the judge’s court, this required disqualification with respect
to matters involving these attorneys or their firms, pages 879, 913-914 citing
Adams v. Commission on Judicial Performance (1994), 8 Cal.4th 630, 661-663
(Adams I) which represented “... conduct prejudicial to the administration of
justice that brings the judicial office into disrepute..”); and relevant United States
law, in particular 18 U.S.C. Section 1346 - the intangible right to honest services,
(which U.S. Constitution Article 6, Cl. 2 requires state judges to obey). This
latter federal law mandates that payments by a party in a case to a judge are
illegal, particularly in California which has a “unique” bribery statute. The cases
are: (A) U.S. v. Frega, U.S. v. Malkus, U.S. v. Adams (1999) 179 F.3d 793 (the
payment by a party and an attorney appearing before a judge to such judge are

bribery and violate 18 U.S.C. Section 1346-the intangible right to honest
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services) stating at 805-807:

Because no linkage of payment and specific official act is required under
California law and because the indictment incorporates the relevant state
bribery statutes, which, in turn, state the elements of the bribery offenses,
the indictment is valid in this respect.

D. The Individual Defendant State Bar Court Hearing Judge Richard A.
Honn Who Presided over Fine’s State Bar Trial Engaged in
Obstruction of Justice which Disqualified Him from Being a Judge
and that State Bar Judge Remke Was also Disqualified.

25. The individual defendant Richard A. Honn engaged in obstruction
of justice by being a member of the Board of Governors of the Southern
California Special Olympics, which accepted payments of $30,000.00 while he
was the State Bar Court trial judge in Fine’s disbarment case and not having
disclosed such and disqualified himself, where LA County appeared before him
in the form of the specific charges of moral turpitude against Fine where LA
County was a party to the “charging cases” in the Notice of Disciplinary Charges
and LA County was currently a defendant in six cases in which Fine was the
attorney for the opposing party with a potential liability to LA County and its co
defendants of hundreds of millions of dollars. Additionally, Jeffrey Bleich, of the
law firm Munger, Tolles & Olson was a member of the Board of Governors
during this time period and the President of the State Bar. Munger, Tolles &
Olson represented LA County in its lease negotiations for the lease extension
which was the subject of the Marina Strand Colony II Homeowners v. County of
Los Angeles lawsuit which Fine was then currently litigating against LA County.
As shown above, this was the same lawsuit where Judge Yaffe received
approximately $827,612.55 of illegal payments from LA County, wrongfully

incarcerated Fine for 18 months and “lied” to the Court about having made an

order against Fine.
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26. Judge Honn was a member of the Board of Governors of the
Southern California Special Olympics along with a representative of LA County.
Vincent H. Herron, a lawyer with Latham & Watkins (the lobbyist and lawyers
for Playa Capital Co., Ltd. the Real Party in Interest in the current case of Efina
etal., v. City of Los Angeles, LASC Case No. BS 073182 (Etina case), where
Fine is counsel for petitioners Grassroots Coalition and Daniel Cohen) is on the
Board of Directors and Latham & Watkins benefits with the City of Los Angeles
in the current Etina case from Judge Honn recommending “disbarment” of Fine.
Fine exposed State Bar Public Board Member Laura Chick for having had an
illegal $5,000.00 behest given in her name by Latham & Watkins one day after
she released a favorable report for Playa Vista Capital Co., Ltd. and while the
comment period was still open. The monetary payment by LA County, a person
likely to appear before Judge Honn in the case, voided Judge Honn’s decision.
Under CCP Section 170.1, and Code of Judicial Ethics, Canons 2A, 3E (1) and
(2) and 4D(1), Judge Honn was obligated to disclose the payment and recuse
himself. The Administrative Office of the Courts, California Judges
Benchguides, Disqualification of Judge [Revised 2010] states at page 2-8:

Disclosure might be appropriate, for example, if:
The judge and an attorney in the proceeding are active members of the
same service organization...

Under Bias, the book states at page 2-12:

A person aware of the facts might reasonably entertain a doubt about the
judge’s impartiality. (CCP section 170.1(a)(6)(A)(iii)Commentary to Cal
Rules of CT, Code of Judicial Ethics, Canon 3E. DCH Health Servs. Corp.
v. Waite, 95 Cal.App.4th 829, 833 (2002)-(recusal may be required on
basis of mere appearance of impropriety)

JUDICIAL TIP: Some judges maintain a list of affiliations that may raise
the issue of disqualification, and circulate this to members of their staff
who review files, such as clerks and research attorneys. In this way, staff
may help judges to be alert to possible conflicts.
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Page 2-13:

No actual bias required. Actual bias need not be present. Roitz v. Coldwell

Banker Residential Brokerage Co., supra, 62 CA4th at 723. If an average

person could entertain doubt about the judge’s impartiality,

disqualification is mandated. Catchpole v. Brannon, (1995) 36 CA4th 237,

246

There is no question that Judge Honn should have disclosed his affiliation
and should have recused himself when the challenge occurred.

27. Court documents showed that Judge Patrice E. McElroy sits on the
Board of Directors of the San Francisco Child Abuse Prevention Center. Another
member of the Board of Directors is Jerry Roth, a Partner at Munger Tolles &
Olson, LLP in San Francisco. Jeffrey Bleich, the 2008 President of the State Bar
and Member of the Board of Governors is also a Partner at Munger Tolles &
Olson, LLP and is resident in the San Francisco office. According to Campaign
Contribution Records in Plaintiff’s State Bar Proceedings, Munger Tolles &
Olson LLP attorneys and partners contributed $14,250.00 to LA County
Supervisors Antonovich, Burke, Molina, and Yaroslavsky from 2001-2005
demonstrating an interest in the County of Los Angeles beyond the ordinary
citizen.

28.  Court documents showed that Judge Madge S. Watai received
money from the County of Los Angeles while she was a Superior Court Judge
and may even be receiving money from or have rights to current LA County
contributions a 401k plan.

29.  Court documents showed that Judges Joann M. Remke and Lucy
Armendariz were California State employees and would lose current payment of
their salaries during budget crises when the state did not have a budget under the
California Constitution, unless emergency legislation were passed, due to the

case won by Fine in the California Supreme Court creating a bias in them against
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